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RFP No. 1-13-C063 
Strategic Communications Consultant Services 

for the 
Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority 

 
Questions and Answers 

 
Notice: Questions may have been edited for clarity and relevance. 
 
1. Confirm that the value of this contract is up to $90,000.00 for the base year of the contract? 

Answer: The estimated annual value is $90,000.00 for the base period as well as any option 
years. 
 

2. Does the estimated annual contract value of up to $90,000 include all of the supplemental 
services noted on the price schedule, or would those services be additional? 
Answer: Yes, the estimated annual value includes all supplemental services listed on the 
price schedule.   
 

3. Is there an incumbent for the work outlined in this RFP?  
Answer:  No, there is not an incumbent. 
 

4. What was the budget for the current PR services contract? 
Answer:  There is not a current PR services contract.  
 

5. What is the estimated number of hours you anticipate the principal would be required to 
spend each month on this contract? 
Answer:  The estimated number of hours for the Strategic Communications Consultant is up 
to 30 hours per month to be ‘on call’ to respond to events and circumstances.  Our focus is 
on counsel rather than on performing hourly tasks. 
 

6. How would the scope of the contract be adjusted during a crisis situation where additional 
support is required? 
Answer:  Adjustments would be made on a case by case basis according to the proposals 
received and the rates established in the supplemental services section of the price schedule.   
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7. Does the MWAA have a strategic communications plan for 2013? Can that be made available 
to respondents? 
Answer:  The communications plan is under development and will not be complete and 
approved prior to the proposal deadline. 
 

8. Has MWAA recently developed an organizational Strategic Plan, which the Communications 
Strategic Plan is to support? 
Answer: MWAA has an ongoing business plan which Communications supports. 
 

9. How would you prioritize your key audiences in importance? 
Answer: The traveling public, congressional and federal oversight organizations, regional 
elected officials, news media, the investment community, airlines and other business 
partners, residents of communities around our facilities. 
 

10. Has the MWAA done research with customers and/or key audiences? Will that research be 
made available to respondents? 
Answer: Yes, the Airports Authority has completed research which is available for review at 
the following location:  http://www.mwaa.com/newsroom.html .  
 

11. Does the scope of potential services include internal or employee communications as well as 
external communications? 
Answer:  Yes, the Consultant may provide counsel for both internal and external 
communications, although focus will be on external communications. 
 

12. Although the desired scope of work focuses on high-level strategic counsel, in the event of a 
crisis communications situation would the contracted firm be expected to provide support on 
implementation? If so, would this fall under a separate contract and scope of services? 
Answer:  No, we will not go beyond the scope of the contract.  If emergency situations require 
additional services, they would be included in a separate agreement. 
 

13. Will there be a media training component for board and senior leadership? 
Answer:  The consultant may provide counsel in these areas.   
 

14. Are you able to provide the results of the most recent passenger surveys? 
Answer:  See response the question 10.  Passenger research is posted on the MWAA website. 
 

15. To clarify, should the supplemental services budget be included in the overall budget? 
Answer: See response to question 2. 
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16. In terms of budget, will the highest points go to the firm that shows the most value or the 
absolute lowest bidder? 
Answer:  Price is only one of several criteria upon which proposals will be evaluated.  Price 
evaluation will be based on the total price of the base year plus the three option years. The 
lowest price proposal that conforms to the solicitation is awarded the maximum number of 
evaluation points for price.  All other conforming proposals are prorated points by 
determining the percentage differential between the low proposal total price and each of the 
other proposals’ total price.  This is determined by dividing the low Offeror’s price by each of 
the higher Offerors’ price to arrive at a percentage factor for each and then multiplying those 
percentage factors times the points assigned for price to compute the evaluation points to be 
assigned to each higher price proposal.   
 

17. Will circumstances that require supplemental services be contracted separately based on the 
rates provided in the pricing schedule or will this fall under the current scope of work? 
Answer:  Supplemental Services will be based on the rates in the price schedule.  A 
modification will be issued to incorporate work agreed to as supplemental services.  
 

18. In the event of a crisis or the identification of a potential crisis communications situation, 
would the offerer be expected to develop a strategic response/containment plan within the 
current scope or would this fall under a supplemental service? 
Answer:  This contract is chiefly for strategic counsel, however, the disciplines identified in 
the price schedule may be utilized for supplemental services when the need arises.  
 

19. In the event that supplemental services are necessary, will the communications consultant be 
provided with a communications plan to implement or is the communications consultant 
expected to develop and execute a communications plan? 
Answer:  See response the Question 18. 
 

20. How will you measure success for this engagement? 
Answer:  Assessment of senior management, based on their judgment of the quality of 
counsel and its impact on results. 
 

21. When was MWAA's last stakeholder opinion research conducted? Is a copy available to 
bidders?   
Answer:  Research results are available in the ‘news and publications’ section of the MWAA 
website.  See response to question 10. 
 

22. What milestones are in place to assess communications goal achievement? 
Answer: Communications measures and assessments are under development.  
 

23. May we receive a copy of MWAA's latest organization strategic plan? 
Answer:  All public information is posted on the Airports Authority website. 
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24. What systems are in place to track and measure media? 
Answer:  MWAA uses internal media tracking and monitoring as well as external monitoring 
services in its assessment of media.  
 

25. How is the price proposal being evaluated? 
Answer:  Price is only one of several criteria upon which proposals will be evaluated.  See 
Section X, Attachment 02 and response to question 16. 
 

26. How many communications staff members does MWAA have and what are their titles? 
Answer: There are 16 Communications Staff Members.  Of these members, the titles are as 
follows: VP Communications; Managers of Public Affairs, Government Relations (2), 
Community Relations, Marketing, and Noise Abatement; Media Relations / Public Affairs 
Representative (3); Graphic Artist; Government Relations Representative; Community 
Relations Representative; Administrative Assistant (2); Noise specialist. 
 

27. The Dulles Toll Road has conducted public meetings. May we receive a copy of the meeting 
reports? 
Answer:  See response the question 23. 
 

28. Can you upload copies of MWAA's marketing communications materials for review? 
Answer:  See response the question 23. 
 

29. When will MWAA's hiring practices audit be complete? 
Answer:  We anticipate this audit will be complete in calendar year 2013.   
 

30. Who will sit on the evaluation committee? 
Answer:  A diverse group of at least three to five representatives with a broad base of 
experience. 
 
 


